NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, JANUARY 26, 2023
START TIME: 4:30 P.M.
LOCATION: 15850 W. KEARNEY BLVD., KERMAN CA.

AGENDA

The North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors meetings are electronically
broadcast. You can view the meeting on the District’s website, www.northcentralfire.org,
by selecting Administration, then Board Meetings from the drop-down menu and clicking
the “Live Stream” link. Please note this is not an interactive forum.

Anyone wishing to address the Board on any agenda item, can do so by written
communication or in person during a Board of Directors meeting. In order to allow time
for all public comments, individuals are limited to five minutes total for each action item.

1.

CALL TO ORDER
A) Roll Call

INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE
PUBLIC COMMENTS

CONSENT AGENDA
A) Consideration and Approval of Disbursements Lists for December 2022
B) Review and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports

1) Fresno County: Cash Balances — All Funds

2) Budget Variance Report: YTD Expenses Compared to Budget

3) Revenue and Reimbursement Report

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 15, 2022

PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION OF FIRE CODE ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01
A) Action item — Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt Fire Code Ordinance No.
2022-01 introduced at the December 15, 2022 regular board meeting.

FIRE CHIEF REPORT

A) Fire Incident/Fire Prevention Reports for December 2022
B) Operational Update

C) 2022 Strike Team Reimbursement Update

D) Grant Status Report



8. CLOSED SESSION
B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
TITLE: Fire Chief

9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, February 23, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.

11. ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND INQUIRIES

At a Board meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item
is ready for discussion. If, at the meeting, you wish to discuss an item, which is not on the agenda, you may indicate your desire
to do so under "Public Comments”. In order to allow time for all public comments and inquiries, the time for individual comments
may, at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board, be limited to five minutes. If you wish to request time on an upcoming Board
Agenda to present a particular item or matter to the Board, you may contact the District by 5:00 p.m. seven business days prior
to the scheduled Board meeting to so request. If the matter is within the Board's jurisdiction, and the Board has not taken action
or considered the item at a recent meeting, the District may place the item on the agenda. When addressing the Board, you are
requested to come forward to the speaker’s podium, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please
contact the District at 559-878-4550. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to
the physically disabled.

2



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
DISBURSEMENT JOURNAL
DECEMBER 01, 2022 - DECEMBER 31, 2022

TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT

QuickBooks Payroll Service Created by Direct Deposit Service on 11/30/2022 12/01/2022 § 1.75
8556  Aramark, Inc Linen Service 12/01/2022 450.89
8557 Biola CSD Utilities 12/01/2022 301.23
8558  Cal State Tool Apparatus Smoke Test 12/01/2022 405.00
8559 California State Disbursement Unit Employee Distribution 12/01/2022 100.50
8560 Employee Reimbursement Uniform Reimbursement 12/01/2022 520.00
8561 Cheryl Carlson Financial Consulting 12/01/2022 3,656.25
8562 Employee Reimbursement Training Reimbursement 12/01/2022 287.20
8563 City of Fresno - Utilities Water/Sewer Utilities 12/01/2022 82.03
8564 Comcast Business Internet and Phone Services 12/01/2022 202.39
8565 Cook's, Inc. Radio Service 12/01/2022 1,029.33
8566 Employee Reimbursement Reimbursement for FSA 12/01/2022 3,000.00
8567 County of Fresno - POB December POB 12/01/2022 61,830.74
8568 (CSG Consultants, Inc Plan Consultants 12/01/2022 3,509.00
8569 Employee Reimbursement Reimbursement for training 12/01/2022 134.00
8570 Fastenal Company Station Supplies 12/01/2022 410.73
8571 lJohn Hancock USA PARS - 457 12/01/2022 5,185.32
8572 Employee Reimbursement Reimbursement 12/01/2022 33.91
8573 Employee Reimbursement Reimbursement for FSA 12/01/2022 2,111.01
8574 Employee Reimbursement Fuel Reimbursement 12/01/2022 14.11
8575  L.N. Curtis, Inc. Apparatus Equipment 12/01/2022 1,818.94
8576 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Legal Services 12/01/2022 4,462.00
8577 Employee Reimbursement Fuel Reimbursement 12/01/2022 42.52
8578 Mac's Equipment Apparatus Parts 12/01/2022 139.89
8579  Metro Uniform Employee Uniform 12/01/2022 259.36
8580 ODP Business Solutions Office Supplies 12/01/2022 574.53
8581 PG&E Utilities 12/01/2022 2,709.07
8582  Priceless Kreations, Inc. Employee Uniform 12/01/2022 7,536.40
8583 Ray Morgan Printer/Copier Maintenance & Repair 12/01/2022 509.96
8584  Real-Time, Inc. Computer Support 12/01/2022 1,122.00
8585 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 12/01/2022 4,512.30
8586 Standard Insurance Company Life & LTD Insurance 12/01/2022 2,175.00
8587 Employee Reimbursement Meal Reimbursement 12/01/2022 27.51
8588 U.S. Bank PARS Pension Contributions 12/01/2022 56,486.48
8589  U.S. Bank Voyager Fleet Systems Fuel Cards 12/01/2022 4,616.89
8590 UnWired Broadband, LLC Radio Communication 12/01/2022 4,99
8591 \Verizon Toughbooks Data Plan 12/01/2022 836.22
8592  Verizon Wireless Cell Phone 12/01/2022 532.83
8593  Verizon Wireless Office Cell Phone - Admin 12/01/2022 526.16

NCPFA Union Dues 12/02/2022 5,650.00
8594 Employee Reimbursement Employee Reimbursement 12/16/2022 78.00
8595 Aramark, Inc Linen Service 12/16/2022 447.91
8596 ARBA Group Life Insurance - January 12/16/2022 198.68
8597  ASI Administrative Solutions Dental/Vision premiums December 12/16/2022 3,184.00
8598  AT&T Mobility Phone & Long Distance Service 12/16/2022 46.24
8599 Baker Manock Legal Services 12/16/2022 2,620.18
8600 Barrios Enterprise Portable Restroom Service 12/16/2022 135.00
8601 California State Disbursement Unit Employee Distribution 12/16/2022 100.50
8602 Cheryl Carlson Financial Consulting 12/16/2022 4,420.00
8603 City of Fresno - Utilities Water/Sewer Utilities 12/16/2022 159.75
8604 City of Kerman Utilities 12/16/2022 638.23

Page 1 0of 3



TOTAL

CK# VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
8605 Comcast Internet and Phone Services 12/16/2022 1,606.24
8606 Cook's, Inc. Radio Service 12/16/2022 6,765.89
8607 (CSG Consultants, Inc Plan Consultants 12/16/2022 1,210.00
8608 Employee Reimbursement Flex 125 Reimbursement 12/16/2022 1,705.92
8609 FDAC Employment Benefits Health Insurance Premiums - Jan 12/16/2022 33,092.79
8610 Fresno County DPH - EMS Division Dispatch Services - December 12/16/2022 15,322.25
8611 H &) Chevrolet, inc. Apparatus Repair 12/16/2022 60.62
8612 John Hancock USA PARS - 457 12/16/2022 5,323.86
8613 John Nipp Station 54 Rent - December 12/16/2022 3,400.00
8614 Employee Reimbursement Reimbursement for Training Class 12/16/2022 245.00
8615 Employee Reimbursement Boot & Uniform Reimbursement 12/16/2022 521.66
8616 Board Member Reimbursement Board Member Reimbursement - Health Insurance 12/16/2022 799.00
8617  L.N. Curtis, Inc. Turnout 12/16/2022 2,210.95
8618 Loperena Antenna Sites Owens Mountain Antenna Site Lease 12/16/2022 1,853.00
8619 Mac's Equipment Apparatus Parts 12/16/2022 430.10
8620 Mayson Ace Hardware Station Supplies 12/16/2022 46.96
8621 Metro Uniform Employee Uniform 12/16/2022 87.07
8622 Board Member Reimbursement Board Member Reimbursement - Health insurance 12/16/2022 901.00
8623 Board Member Reimbursement Board Member Reimbursement - Health Insurance 12/16/2022 168.16
8624 Mid Valley Utilities - Trash Disposal 12/16/2022 555.55
8625 ODP Business Solutions Office Supplies 12/16/2022 223.32
8626 PARS Membership Pension 12/16/2022 3,031.82
8627 PG&E Utilities 12/16/2022 2,252.81
8628 Priceless Kreations, Inc. Employee Uniform 12/16/2022 2,340.67
8629 Real-Time, Inc. Computer Support 12/16/2022 1,111.00
8630 REPUBLIC Utilities: Trash Disposal 12/16/2022 101.20
8631 Employee Reimbursement Flex 125 Reimbursement 12/16/2022 283.52
8632 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 12/16/2022 3,615.48
8633 Rolinda Farm Supply Apparatus Equipment 12/16/2022 15.14
8634 Board Member Reimbursement Board Member Reimbursement - Health Insurance 12/16/2022 799.00
8635 San Joaquin Valley Air Control Dist. 23/24 Annual Permit to Operate Fee 12/16/2022 42.00
8636 Sebastian Phone & Long Distance Service 12/16/2022 173.12
8637 Sierra Data Management Scanned Documents Storage - Dec. 12/16/2022 45.22
8638 Sierra HR Partners, Inc. HR Consultant 12/16/2022 125.00
8639 Slumberger Station Maintenance 12/16/2022 2,054.03
8640 Sparkletts Water 12/16/2022 774.57
8641 Streamline Web Maintenance 12/16/2022 400.00
8642 Employee Reimbursement Employee Reimbursement - Health Insurance 12/16/2022 1,350.00
8643 U.S. Bank Cal-Card Credit Card Expenses 12/16/2022 13,243.60
8644 U.S. Bank PARS Pension Contributions 12/16/2022 54,792.23
8645 UNITEDHEALTHCARE INS Prior Board Insurance 12/16/2022 431.75
8646 Valley Farm Supply, Inc. Materials, Equipment, Supplies 12/16/2022 659.19
8647 Wally's Tire & Wheel Apparatus Repair 12/16/2022 1,381.10

QuickBooks Payroll Service Created by Direct Deposit Service on 12/20/2022 12/21/2022 1.75

Clyde Lansing Consulting Services 12/22/2022 2,000.00

QuickBooks Payroll Service Payroll Fees 12/23/2022 213.20
8648 A-1Auto Apparatus Maintenance 12/30/2022 50.00
8649  Alert-All Promotional Items 12/30/2022 5,693.41
8650 Aramark, Inc Linen Service 12/30/2022 403.98
8651 Biola CSD Utilities 12/30/2022 259.74
8652  (Cal State Tool Apparatus Smoke Test 12/30/2022 660.00
8653 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 106.00
8654 Employee Reimbursement Flex 125 Reimbursement 12/30/2022 5.17
8655 CHASE Loan payment 12/30/2022 209,018.50
8656 Cheryl Carlson Financial Consulting 12/30/2022 3,335.00

Page 2 of 3



TOTAL

CKit VENDOR DESCRIPTION DATE AMOUNT
8657  City of Fresno - Utilities Water/Sewer Utilities 12/30/2022 84.12
8658 Comcast Business Internet and Phone Services 12/30/2022 202.39
8659 County of Fresno - POB December POB 12/30/2022 30,915.37
8660 CrewSense, LLC Software renewal 12/30/2022 6,774.84
8661 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8662 Fastenal Company Station Supplies 12/30/2022 374.21
8663  Fire Specialties Fire Investigations 12/30/2022 353.94
8664 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8665 Helio's TFB Inc Phone Repair 12/30/2022 25.06
8666 Employee Reimbursement Flex 125 Reimbursement 12/30/2022 300.00
8667 Jorgensen Company, Inc. Extinguisher Service 12/30/2022 559.28
8668 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8669 Employee Reimbursement Mileage Reimbursement 12/30/2022 600.00
8670 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8671 Kerman CofC Membership Fee 12/30/2022 40.00
8672 KerWest Newspaper Public Notice 12/30/2022 482.00
8673 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8674  L.N. Curtis, Inc. Apparatus Equipment 12/30/2022 105.93
8675 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8676 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Legal Services 12/30/2022 9,887.50
8677 Mac's Equipment Apparatus Parts 12/30/2022 218.92
8678 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8679  ODP Business Solutions Office Supplies 12/30/2022 498.17
8680 PG&E Utilities 12/30/2022 2,995.84
8681 Quinn Co. Equipment Maintenance - Generator 12/30/2022 3,559.77
8682 Real-Time, Inc. Computer Support 12/30/2022 670.00
8683 Employee Reimbursement Flex 125 Reimbursement 12/30/2022 544.40
8684 ROBERT V. JENSEN Fuel 12/30/2022 4,484.04
8685  Sierra Lock Office Entry Lock 12/30/2022 1,083.48
8686 Standard Insurance Company Life & LTD Insurance 12/30/2022 2,175.00
8687 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8688 Tent City Canvas House Salvage Covers & Carry Alls 12/30/2022 3,312.00
8689 Trace Analytics, LLC SCBA Repairs & Maintenance, 12/30/2022 360.73
8690 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 106.00
8691 Tyler Burgess Construction Station 59 Construction 12/30/2022 169,865.48
8692 Employee Reimbursement Meal Per Diem 12/30/2022 53.00
8693  U.S. Bank Voyager Fleet Systems Fuel Cards 12/30/2022 3,598.35
8694  Verizon Toughbooks Data Plan 12/30/2022 836.22
8695 Verizon Wireless Cell Phone 12/30/2022 531.44
8696 Verizon Wireless Office Cell Phone - Admin 12/30/2022 434.23

Total $ 823,591.18

Board Action: To approve disbursements from West America general account as presented for the total amount of

$823,591.18 for December 2022.

Page 3 of 3



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
FUND CASH BALANCES

FUND CASH BALANCES

FUND CLASS #

CAPITAL SICK RESERVE RISK
GENERAL  poyipment BUILDING EMS LEAVE FUND  CONTINGENCY TOTAL OF ALL
FUNDS
10000 20000 41400 41410 41420 41430 41440

Beg Balance 12/1/2022

$ 1,170,415.25 $4,484,459.81 $320,062.94 $ 456,155.89 $35,203.56 $349,14220 $

122,267.74 $ 6,937,707.39

Ending Balance 12/31/2022

$ 5,142,933.05 $4,500,871.39 $324,678.88 $ 1,035,663.00 $35,332.30 $350,418.99 $

122,714.86 $11,512,612.47




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
SERVICES, SUPPLIES AND MAINTENANCE
BUDGET - TO - ACTUAL
JULY 2022 - JUNE 2023

Fiscal Year . .
Services, Supplies and Maintenance 2022 - 2023 o/ December YTD Total “ofiBudget Bud_ge.t ot foc!get
Budget thru 11/30/22 Used Remaining Remaining

County of Fresno - Dispatch Services $ 183,900.00 $ 76,611.25 $ 1532225 $ 91,933.50 50.0% $ 91,966.50 50.0%
Pension Obligation Bonds 385,500 154,576.85 30,915.37 185,492.22 48.1% 200,007.78 51.9%
FCERA Payment Financing 417,900 208,529.20 209,018.50 417,547.70 99.9% 352.30 0.1%
Apparatus Financing Payment 49,200 49,160.54 0.00 49,160.54 99.9% 39.46 0.1%
Station 54 Lease 40,800 20,400.00 3,400.00 23,800.00 58.3% 17,000.00 41.7%
Property, Auto & Liability Insurance 133,000 132,945.00 0.00 132,945.00 100.0% 55.00 0.0%
Personal Protective Equipment 92,100 78,190.98 10,114.07 88,305.05 95.9% 3,794.95 4.1%
Communications 124,000 118,562.34 8,120.07 126,682.41 102.2% -2,682.41 -2.2%
Apparatus Maintenance 250,000 140,329.20 54,163.08 194,492.28 77.8% 55,507.72 22.2%
Station Equipment Maintenance 12,000 6,156.34 1,784.55 7,940.89 66.2% 4,059.11 33.8%
Computers & Office Equipment 77,300 48,977.57 13,104.84 62,082.41 80.3% 15,217.59 19.7%
Facility Maintenance 200,000 93,021.08 11,736.53 104,757.61 52.4% 95,242.39 47.6%
Station Supplies 71,900 27,927.88 2,627.94 30,555.82 42.5% 41,344.18 57.5%
Fuel 163,000 72,524.45 11,748.09 84,272.54 51.7% 78,727.46 48.3%
Utilities 90,400 52,772.27 8,225.35 60,997.62 67.5% 29,402.38 32.5%
Legal & Accounting 146,800 57,509.95 24,178.93 81,688.88 55.6% 65,111.12 44.4%
Professional Services 152,200 73,264.41 12,033.83 85,298.24 56.0% 66,901.76 44.0%
Membership Dues & Subscriptions 18,800 12,136.25 781.84 12,918.09 68.7% 5,881.91 31.3%
Travel Expenses 45,000 31,530.06 1,193.48 32,723.54 72.7% 12,276.46 27.3%
Training 120,000 30,997.93 1,148.82 32,146.75 26.8% 87,853.25 73.2%
Health, Fitness and Safety 30,000 16,029.86 0.00 16,029.86 53.4% 13,970.14 46.6%
Office Supplies 17,000 14,774.19 1,898.25 16,672.44 98.1% 327.56 1.9%
Food 36,000 37,643.10 644.01 38,287.11 106.4% -2,287.11 -6.4%
Fire Prevention 50,000 17,817.14 7,577.08 25,394.22 50.8% 24,605.78 49.2%
Apparatus Tools, Equipment & Hose 115,000 38,145.66 938.44 39,084.10 34.0% 75,915.90 66.0%
SCBA Masks & Maintenance 84,000 576.15 360.73 936.88 1.1% 83,063.12 98.9%

Totals $ 3,105,800.00 $ 1,611,109.65 $ 431,036.05 $ 2,042,145.70 65.8% $ 1,063,654.30 34.2%

6th month of fiscal year - average = 50.0%




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
WAGES, BENEFITS, POB AND FUND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET - TO - ACTUAL
JULY 2022 - JUNE 2023

Fiscal Year

ivi 0, 0,
Wages, Benefits and POB 2022 - 2023 Activity December YTD Total °of Budget Budget % of Budget
thru 11/30/22 Used Remaining Remaining
Budget
Current Board Wages and Benefits $ 51200 $ 1937660 $ 394255 $ 2331915  455% $  27,880.85  54.5%
Prior Board Member Benefits 5,600 2,198.75 439.75 2,638.50  47.1% 2,961.50  52.9%
Surviving Spouse Benefits 11,600 4,636.90 945.77 5582.67  48.1% 6,017.33  51.9%
Employee Wages and Benefits 9,061,550  3,785658.06  637,865.20  4,423523.26  48.8% 4,638,026.74  51.2%

Total Wages, Benefits and POB $ 9,129,950 $ 3,811,870.31 $ 643,193.27 $ 4,455,063.58 48.8% $ 4,674,886.42 51.2%

Fund Expenditures per Budget

Weed Abatement $ 25,000 $ 5,655.55 $ 3,024.07 $ 8,579.62 34.3% $ 16,420.38 65.7%
Renovation of Station 59 App Bay 373,200 358,983.43 40,940.13 399,923.56 107.2% -26,723.56 -7.2%
Type lll Fire Engine 500,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 500,000.00 100.0%
Capital Improvement Projects 100,000 1,036.44 11,822.15 12,858.59 12.9% 87,141.41 871%
Two Fire Prevention Vehicles 85,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 85,000.00 100.0%
Miscellaneous Expenditures - Capital 20,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 20,000.00 100.0%

Total Fund Expenditures $ 1,103,200 $ 365,575.42 $ 55,786.35 $ 421,361.77 38.2% $ 681,838.23 - 61.8%




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
REVENUE AND REIMBURSEMENTS
BUDGET - TO - ACTUAL
JULY 2022 - JUNE 2023

Revenue :(IJSZ‘;a! :::; thrﬁ(‘:lt‘:‘ll;t(‘),IZZ December YTD Total %Ro:cz::’t:%et ReBmu:ign?;g %
Budget
Property Taxes $ 10,942,100 $ 72,717.88 $ 5,435,727.01 $ 5,508,444.89 50% $ 5,433,655.11 50%
Interest (County Investment Pool) 131,400 2,463.96 35,733.07 38,197.03 29% 93,202.97 71%
Fees, Permits and Plan Checks 71,500 56,903.18 15,732.50 72,635.68 102% -1,135.68 -2%
Ambulance Station Lease 17,400 10,143.00 0.00 10,143.00 58% 7,257.00 42%
Tower Rental 31,700 10,496.00 5,248.00 15,744.00 50% 15,956.00 50%
FCC ISA/Training Reimbursement 166,000 88,949.79 11,631.58 100,581.37 61% 65,418.63 39%
Reimbursement for Priority One Calls 13,000 0.00 0.00 0.00 0% 13,000.00 100%
Miscellaneous Income 17,300 10,670.52 7,203.43 17,873.95 103% -573.95 3%
Revenue Totals $ 11,390,400 $ 252,344.33 $ 5,511,275.59 $ 5,763,619.92 50.60% $ 5,626,780.08 49.4%
Reimburseable ltems
SHSGP and OES Grant Reimbursements $ 120,000 $ 18,306.00 $ - $ 18,306.00 15% $ 101,694.00 85%
Strike Team Reimbursement 114.13 43,616.62 43,730.75
2019 SAFER Grant 919,000 405,873.07 0.00 405,873.07 44% 513,126.93 56%
2020 SAFER Grant 867,600 163,559.10 0.00 163,559.10 19% 704,040.90 81%
Reimbursement Totals $ 1,906,600 $ 587,852.30 $ 43,616.62 $ 631,468.92 33.12% $ 1,318,861.83 69%




NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR BOARD MEETING
THURSDAY, DECEMBER 15, 2022
START TIME: 4:30 P.M.
LOCATION: 15850 W. KEARNEY BLVD., KERMAN CA.

MINUTES

The North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors meetings are electronically
broadcast. You can view the meeting on the District's website, www.northcentralfire.org,
by selecting Administration, then Board Meetings from the drop-down menu and clicking
the “Live Stream” link. Please note this is not an interactive forum.

Anyone wishing to address the Board on any agenda item, can do so by written
communication or in person during a Board of Directors meeting. In order to allow time
for all public comments, individuals are limited to five minutes total for each action item.

1. CALL TO ORDER
District Board Vice Chair Mr. Ken Abrahamian called the meeting to order at 4:42

p.m.

Roll Call
Board Members Present: Mr. Michael Golden, Ms. Amanda Souza, Mr. Ken

Abrahamian, and Mr. Michael Foglio who arrived at 4:51pm

Also present were Fire Chief Tim Henry, District Counsel Ken Price, General
Manager Shannon Schroth, and Fire Marshal George Mavrikis.

2. INVOCATION AND FLAG SALUTE
The invocation and flag salute were led by Chief Henry.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Chief Golden thanked those who participated in the Shop with a Cop event and
gave remembrances to the passing of retired Police Chief Hal Grant, who served
the City of Kerman from 1978-1981.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A) Consideration and Approval of Disbursements Lists for October
and November 2022

B) Review and Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports
1) Fresno County: Cash Balances — All Funds
2) Budget Variance Report: YTD Expenses Compared to Budget
3) Revenue and Reimbursement Report

C) Approve American Ambulance Contract Amendment



Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A) Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October 27, 2022

Motion: To approve the minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of October 27,
2022, as presented.

Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Mr. Abrahamian.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Absent Aye Aye 4/0

6. SWEARING IN OF ELECTED BOARD MEMBERS
A) Chief Henry to administer Oath of Office for elected Board Members Foglio,
Nonini and Golden.

7. REORGANIZATION OF BOARD OFFICERS
A) Election of Board Chair, Board Vice-Chair and Board Secretary

Mr. Abrahamian opened the floor for nominations for Board Chair. Mr. Abrahamian
was nominated by Ms. Souza, with no other nominations.

Motion: To approve the nomination and elect Mr. Abrahamian for Board Chair.
Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Mr. Nonini.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

Mr. Abrahamian called for nominations for Vice-Chair and Ms. Souza nominated
Mr. Nonini. There were no other nominations so Mr. Abrahamian called for a vote
to elect Mr. Nonini.

Motion: To approve the nomination and elect Mr. Nonini for Board Vice-Chair.
Moved by: Mr. Abrahamian, second by Mr. Foglio.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

Mr. Abrahamian asked for nominations for Board Secretary and Mr. Foglio
nominated Ms. Souza. There were no other nominations so Mr. Abrahamian called
for a vote to elect Ms. Souza.



Motion: To approve the nomination and elect Ms. Souza for Board Secretary.
Moved by: Mr. Abrahamian, second by Mr. Foglio.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

8. BOARD MEETING DATES — CALENDAR YEAR 2023
A) Action item — Consider and approve proposed board meeting dates for the 2023
calendar year and keep 4:30pm meeting time.

Motion: To approve board meeting dates for calendar year 2023 and keep
meeting 4:30pm meeting time.

Moved by: Mr. Golden, second by Mr. Nonini.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

9. FIRE CODE ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01
A) Action item — Introduction and review of Fire Code Ordinance No. 2022-01.
B) Schedule the Public Hearing.

Motion: To authorize Fire Code Ordinance No. 2022-01 for Public Notice to
announce the public hearing date set for January 26, 2023.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

10. RESOLUTION NO. 22-13 — MAKING AND ADOPTING EXPRESS FINDINGS
THAT MODIFY OR CHANGE THE CFC TO ENSURE THEY ARE REASONABLY
NECESSARY
A) Action item — Consideration and adoption of Resolution No. 22-13 making and

adopting express findings that modify or change the CFC to ensure they are
reasonably necessary.

Motion: To adopt Resolution No. 22-13 making and adopting express findings
that modify or change the California Fire Code are reasonably necessary
because of local climatic, geological and topographical conditions.

Moved by: Mr. Abrahamian, second by Ms. Souza.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

3



11.

12.

13.

14.

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION - CEQA REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DISTRICT'S

FIRE CODE ORDINANCE

A) Action item — Consideration and adoption of the Notice of Exemption - CEQA
requirements.

Motion: To Adopt the Notice of Exemption required by CEQA for District Fire
Code Ordinance No. 2022-01.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Foglio.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

RESOLUTION NO. 22-14 AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSITION OF EXCESS

DISTRICT PROPERTY

A) Action item — Consider and adopt Resolution No. 22-14 authorizing the
disposition of excess District property.

Motion: To adopt Resolution No. 22-14 authorizing the disposition of excess
district property.

Moved by: Mr. Nonini, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

FIRE CHIEF REPORT
A) Fire Incident/Fire Prevention Reports for October and November 2022
B) Operational Update

PUBLIC COMMENT:
Chief Golden provided comments to the Board on the positive contributions Chief
Henry has made to the community.

CLOSED SESSION

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of
Section 54956.9: Number of cases: 1

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
TITLE: Fire Chief



C. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS PURSUANT TO

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.8
APN: 02520017S
Property: Kerman 93630
Agency Negotiation: Chief Tim Henry
Negotiating Parties: Roland C. and Darlene A. Nale
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Sale
There was no action to report from closed session.

15. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/REPORTS
Ken Price made a few remarks on the Brown Act
16. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A) Regular Board Meeting: Thursday, January 26, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.
17. ADJOURNMENT
Motion: To ADJOURN the meeting at 6:53pm
Moved by: Mr. Abrahamian, second by Mr. Golden.

Mr. Abrahamian: Mr. Golden: Mr. Foglio: Mr. Nonini: Ms. Souza: Vote
Aye Aye Aye Aye Aye 5/0

PUBLIC COMMENTS AND INQUIRIES

At a Board meeting, those who wish to be heard on matters on the agenda should indicate their desire to speak when the item
is ready for discussion. If, at the meeting, you wish to discuss an item, which is not on the agenda, you may indicate your desire
to do so under “Public Comments”. In order to allow time for all public comments and inquiries, the time for individual comments
may, at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board, be limited to five minutes. If you wish to request time on an upcoming Board
Agenda to present a particular item or matter to the Board, you may contact the District by 5:00 p.m. seven business days prior
to the scheduled Board meeting to so request. If the matter is within the Board's jurisdiction, and the Board has not taken action
or considered the item at a recent meeting, the District may place the item on the agenda. When addressing the Board, you are
requested to come forward to the speaker’s podium, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, please
contact the District at 559-878-4550. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District to
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to
the physically disabled.



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian » Michael Foglio
Michael Golden * Rusty Nonini « Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

15850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 + FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 26, 2023

SUBJECT: Fire Code Ordinance No. 2022-01

Ordinance No. 2022-01 was introduced at the December 15, 2022, regular board meeting
with the Board approving the following:

o Resolution No. 22-13 making and adopting express findings that modifications or
changes to the 2022 California Fire Code are reasonably necessary.
Notice of Exemption — CEQA requirements.

e Approved the release of the ordinance to the County of Fresno and the City of
Kerman for their thirty-day review period.

¢ Notice the public hearing date for Fire Code Ordinance No. 2022-01 for January
26, 2023.

Staff did not receive any comments from the County of Fresno or the City of Kerman.
Upon adoption of the ordinance, a copy will be provided to the City of Kerman and the
County of Fresno. The legislative body of the city and county may ratify, modify, or deny
an adopted ordinance and transmit its determination to the District within 15 days of
determination.

Recommended Action: Conduct the public hearing for Fire Code Ordinance No. 2022-
01 and adopt Fire Code Ordinance No. 2022-01.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-01

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE AND THE 2021
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE PRESCRIBING REGULATIONS GOVERNING
CONDITIONS HAZARDOUS TO LIFE AND PROPERTY FROM FIRE, HAZARDOUS
MATERIALS, OR EXPLOSION; AND ESTABLISHING A DIVISION OF FIRE
PREVENTION AND INVESTIGATION, PROVIDING OFFICERS THEREFORE, AND
DEFINING THEIR POWERS AND DUTIES.

Be it ordained by the North Central Fire Protection District finds as follows:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF THE
NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT PROPOSED AND INITIATED BY
Fire Chief Timothy V. Henry
MOVED BY SECONDED BY

The 2022 California Fire Code and 2021 International Fire Code as amended by the
North Central Fire Protection District are hereby adopted.

FIRE PREVENTION

Section
100 Adoption of the California Fire Code
101.1 Title

101.1.2 Limits Established by Law
101.1.3 Responsibility for Enforcement

102.3 Change of Use or Occupancy
102.6 Historic Buildings

102.13 Application of Performance Code for Buildings and Facilities
103 Code Compliance Agency
103.1 General

103.2 Appointment

103.3 Deputies

104.3 Right of entry

104.3.1 Warrant

104.3.2 Inspection Frequency

104.4 Identification

104.7 Liability

104.7 .1 Legal Defense

105.5 Required Operational Permits

105.5.15 Exhibits, Trade Shows, and Special Events
105.6.17 Fire Hydrants ‘

Page 1 of 37



105.6.34
105.6.50
105.7.16
106.1
106.2.2
107.1
109
109.6
110.2
111.2
112.3.1
112.4
112.4.1
113.4
114.11
114.1.2
115.2
202
304.4
304.5
304.6
307.1.1
312
312.1
315.4.3
503.5
506
506.1
506.1.1
506.1.1.1
506.1.1.2
506.1.1.3
506.2
507.3
807.5.1.3
901.4.5
901 .6.3.2
903.1
903.1.2
903.3.1
903.3.1.1.3
903.3.1.1.4
903.4.3
903.6

Open Burning

Exterior Storage

LP-Gas

Required Construction Permits

Automatic Fire Extinguishing Systems

Fees for Fire Inspections

Maintenance

Overcrowding

Authority to Require Connection to Service Utilities
Limitations on Authority

Service

Violation Penalties

Abatement of Violation

Failure to Comply

Unsafe Conditions

Structural Hazards

Cost Recovery

General Definitions

Recycling and Industrial Waste Handling Facilities
Dumping of Combustible Waste Material

Removal of Debris

Prohibited Open Burning

Vehicle Impact Protection

General

Additional Requirements for Outside Storage
Required Gates or Barricades

Locked Premises Access

Where Required

Locks

Unauthorized Possession of Fire Department Bypass Key
Unauthorized Duplication of Fire Department Bypass Key
Penalties

Key Box Maintenance

Fire Flow

Wood Use in Group A-3 Places of Religious Worship
Additional Fire Protection Systems

Problematic Systems

General

Determination of Building Area

Standards

Group R Mixed Occupancy Buildings

Joint Live Work Units Quarters

Floor Control Valves

Where Required in Existing Buildings and Structures

Page 2 of 37



912.2.3
1025
1025.1

1025.1.1
1104
1104.7 1.
1104.7.2
2306.2.3
2401
2401.1.2
2810
2810.1
2810.2
2810.5
2810.6
2810.7
2810.9
2810.10
2810.12
2810.13
5602

5604
5704
5704.3.5.1
5706.2.4
5706.2.4.4
Appendix B
B103.4
Appendix C
C103.4
8-103
6101
6101.3

Address Identification

Means of Egress

General

Maintenance

Construction Requirements for Existing Buildings
Door Swing

Door Hardware

Above-Ground Tanks Located Outside of Buildings, Above Grade
Flammable Finishes

Location

Recycling and Waste Handling Facilities

Scope

Storage Site

Security

Pile Separation

Clearance to Important Buildings

Pile Fire Protection Water Supply

Fire Extinguishers

Sizes of Piles

Exterior Storage of Recycled Materials, Industrial Waste and Idle Pallets
Fireworks Ordinance

Prohibition of Explosives

Flammable and Combustible Liquids Storage
Basement Storage

Permanent and Temporary Tanks

Locations Where Above-Ground Tanks are Prohibited
Fire-Flow Requirements for Buildings

Additional Modifications.

Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution
Additional Modifications.

Historic Buildings

Liquified Petroleum Gases

Construction Documents

Page 3 of 37



ADMINISTRATION
SECTION 100 ADOPTION OF THE CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE.
Section 100 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

100 Adoption of the California Fire Code. The 2022 California Fire Code, as
promulgated by the California Building Standards Commission, which incorporates the
adoption of the 2021 edition of the International Fire Code as amended with necessary
California amendments, and the 2021 International Fire Code, including Appendix
Chapters E and F, and the 2021 International Performance Code for Buildings and
Facilities Part | and Part lll are hereby adopted and amended by the North Central Fire
Protection District for the purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions
hazardous to life and property, protection from fire, hazardous materials, or explosions,
except such portions as fully as if set out at length herein. The Board does hereby find it
is reasonably necessary to make certain changes and modifications to the requirements
contained in the rules and regulations adopted pursuant to Sections 17922 et seq. and
18935 et seq. of the California Health and Safety Code; such change or modifications are
herein more particularly set forth.

SECTION 101 SCOPE AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
SECTION 101.1. TITLE.
Section 101.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

101.1 Title. This code shall be known as the North Central Fire Protection District Fire
Code, may be cited as such, and shall be referred to herein as "this Code." When used
here, "CFC" means the 2022 California Fire Code, with such amendments as adopted by
the State of California and the 2021 International Fire Code, including appendix Chapters
E and F, as adopted and amended in this article.

SECTION 101.1.2 LIMITS ESTABLISHED BY LAW.
101.1.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

101.1.2 Limits Established by Law. The limits referred to in Sections 5704.2, 6104.2 and
Chapter 56 of the California Fire Code shall mean those locations noted by fire department

policy.

Page 4 of 37



SECTION 101.1.3 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ENFORCEMENT.
101.1.3 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

101.1.3 Responsibility for Enforcement. Enforcement of building standards and fire
protection requirements adopted by the State Fire Marshal and published in the California
Building Standards Code relating to fire and panic safety, and other regulations of the State
Fire Marshal, shall be the responsibility of the fire code official. This shall include R-3
occupancies, including one and two-family dwellings.

SECTION 102 APPLICABILITY
SECTION 102.3 CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY.
Section 102.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

102.3 Change of Use or Occupancy. No change shall be made in the use or occupancy
of any structure, which would place the structure in a different division of the same group
or occupancy or in a different group of occupancies, unless such structure is made to
comply with the requirements of this code and the California Building Code. Subject to the
approval of the fire and building code officials, the use or occupancy of an existing structure
shall be allowed to be changed, and the structure is allowed to be occupied for purposes
in other groups without conforming to all the requirements of this code and the California
Building Code for those groups, provided the new or proposed use is less hazardous,
based on life and fire risk, than the existing use.

SECTION 102.6 HISTORIC BUILDINGS.
Section 102.6 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

102.6 Historic Buildings. The provisions of this Code relating to the construction,
alteration, repair, enlargement, restoration, relocation, or moving of buildings or structures
shall not be mandatory for existing buildings or structures identified and classified by the
state or local jurisdiction as historic buildings when such buildings or structures do not
constitute a distinct hazard to life or property. Fire protection in designated historic
buildings and structures shall be provided with an approved fire protection plan as required
in Section 1103.1.1.

Page 5 of 37



SECTION 102.13 APPLICATION OF PERFORMANCE CODE FOR BUILDINGS AND
FACILITIES.

Section 102.13 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

102.13 Application of Performance Code for Buildings and Facilities. Where
application is made to the fire code official for approval of alternative equivalent designs,
performance-based designs or other designs under 104.9 of the North Central Fire
Protection District Fire Code, in new or existing buildings, the 2021 edition of the
International Code Council Performance Code for Buildings and Facilities is hereby
adopted. This code shall regulate and govern the alternative equivalent design,
performance-based design, other design where applicable, construction, alteration,
modification, extension, quality of materials, erection, installation, alteration, repair,
location, relocation, replacement, addition to, improvement of, use or maintenance of,
building and/or fire protection systems, components, equipment and materials.

SECTION 103 CODE COMPLIANCE AGENCY
SECTION 103.1 GENERAL.
Section 103.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

103.1 General. The department of fire prevention is established within the jurisdiction
under the direction of the fire code official. The function of the department shall be the
implementation, administration, and enforcement of the provisions of this code.

Whenever the terms “fire department”, “district”, “department of fire prevention," “fire
prevention bureau," "fire prevention division", or "community risk reduction unit" are used
in this Code or the North Central Fire Protection District Code, the terms shall mean those
personnel assigned to, and engaged in, the prevention or investigation of fire on behalf of
the North Central Fire Protection District.

SECTION 103.2 APPOINTMENT.
Section 103.2 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

103.2 Appointment. The fire code official shall be appointed by the district fire chief
appointing authority of the North Central Fire Protection District.

Page 6 of 37



SECTION 103.3 DEPUTIES.
Section 103.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

103.3 Deputies. In accordance with the prescribed procedures of the North Central Fire
Protection District and with the concurrence of the appointing authority, the fire code
official shall have the authority to appoint a deputy fire code official, other related technical
officers, inspectors and other employees.

SECTION 104 GENERAL AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES
SECTION 104.3 RIGHT OF ENTRY.
Section 104.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

104.3 Right of Entry. Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the
provisions of this code, or where the fire code official has reasonable cause to believe that
there exists in a building or on any premises any conditions or violations of this code that
make the building or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the fire code official or
designee shall have the authority to enter the building or premises at all reasonable times
to inspect or to perform the duties imposed on the fire code official by this code. If such
building or premises is occupied, the fire code official or designee shall present credentials
to the occupant and request entry. If such building or premises is unoccupied, the fire code
official or designee shall first make a reasonable effort to locate the owner, the owner’s
authorized agent or other person having charge or control of the building or premises and
request entry. If entry is refused, the fire code official has recourse to every remedy
provided by law to secure entry.

SECTION 104.3.1 WARRANT.
Section 104.3.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

104.3.1 Warrant. Where the fire code official has first obtained a proper inspection warrant
or other remedy provided by law to secure entry, an owner, the owner’s authorized agent
or occupant or person having charge, care or control of the building or premises shall not
fail or neglect, after proper request is made as herein provided, to permit entry therein by
the fire code official or designee for the purpose of inspection and examination pursuant to
this code.

Page 7 of 37



SECTION 104.3.2 INSPECTION FREQUENCY.
Section 104.3.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

104.3.2 Inspection Frequency. The fire code official shall be authorized to establish a
minimum inspection frequency for all occupancy groups where not already determined by
the State of California Health and Safety Code.

SECTION 104.4 IDENTIFICATION.
Section 104.4 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

104.4 Identification. The fire code official or designee shall carry proper identification
when inspecting structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code.

SECTION 104.7 LIABILITY.
Section 104.7 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

104.7 Liability. The fire code official, the North Central Fire Protection Board of Directors,
officer or employee charged with the enforcement of this code, while acting for the North
Central Fire Protection District, in good faith and without malice in the discharge of the
duties required by this code or other pertinent law or the North Central Fire Protection
District ordinance, shall not thereby be rendered civilly or criminally liable personally, and
is hereby relieved from all personal liability for any damage accruing to persons or property
as a result of an act or by reason of an act or omission in the discharge of official duties.

SECTION 104.7.1 LEGAL DEFENSE.
Section 104.7.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

104.7.1 Legal Defense. Any suit or criminal complaint instituted against any officer or
employee because of an act performed by that officer or employee in the lawful discharge
of duties and under the provisions of this code shall be defended by the legal
representatives of the North Central Fire Protection District until the final termination of the
proceedings. The fire code official or any subordinate shall not be liable for costs in an
action, suit or proceeding that is instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this code; and
any officer of the district of fire prevention, acting in good faith and without malice, shall be
free from liability for acts performed under any of its provisions or by reason of any act or
omission in the performance of official duties in connection therewith.

Page 8 of 37



SECTION 105 PERMITS
SECTION 105.5 REQUIRED OPERATIONAL PERMITS.
Section 105.5 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

105.5 Required Operational Permits. The fire code official is authorized to issue
operational permits for the operations set forth in Section 105.5.1 through Section
105.6.24. Required permits will be issued only for those operations where a permit fee has
been established by Master Fee Schedule.

SECTION 105 5.15 EXHIBITS, TRADE SHOWS AND SPECIAL EVENTS.
Section 105.5.15 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

105.5.15 Exhibits, Trade Shows, and Special Events. An operational permit is required
to operate exhibits, trade shows, and special events.

SECTION 105 5.17 FIRE HYDRANTS.
Section 105.5.17 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

105.5.17 Fire Hydrants. A permit is required to use fire hydrants intended for fire
suppression purposes, which are installed on water systems and accessible to public
roadways, alleys, or public utility easements on private property. Such permit shall be
obtained from the City of Fresno Water Division, the City of Kerman Public Works, or
persons responsible for providing water to such hydrants or water systems within a
waterworks or community services district. Also see Sections 901.5 and 901.8.

Exception: A permit is not required for authorized employees of the water company, which
supplies the system or the fire department to use or operate fire hydrants or valves.

SECTION 105.6.34 OPEN BURNING.
Section 105.6.34 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

105.5.34 Open Burning. An operational permit is required for any open burning, including
for the kindling or maintaining of an open fire or a fire on any public street, alley, road, or
other public or private ground, including recreational fires. Instructions and stipulations of
the permit shall be adhered to.

An operational permit may only be issued after a permit has been obtained from the San
Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.

Page 9 of 37



SECTION 105.6.50 EXTERIOR STORAGE.
Section 105.6.50 of the California Fire code is added to read:
105.6.50 Exterior Storage. An operational permit is required for the exterior storage of

more than 4,999 square feet of tires, pallets, bin boxes, wood or plastic products, other
combustible finished materials, wood chips, hogged material, fines, compost, recycled

materials, industrial waste or similar products.

SECTION 105.7.16 LP-GAS.
Section 105.7.16 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

105.7.16 LP-Gas. A construction permit is required for installation or modification of LP-
Gas tanks with a capacity (single or aggregate) in excess of 500 gallons.

SECTION 105.6 REQUIRED CONSTRUCTION PERMITS.
Section 105.6 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

105.6 Required Construction Permits. The fire code official is authorized to issue
construction permits for work as set forth in Section 105.6.1 through Section 105.6.24
Required permits will be issued only for those operations where a permit fee has been

established by Master Fee Schedule.
SECTION 105.6.1 AUTOMATIC FIRE EXTINGUISHING SYSTEMS.

Section 105.6.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

105.6.1 Automatic Fire Extinguishing Systems. A construction permit is required for
installation of or modification to an automatic fire extinguishing system.

SECTION 107.1 FEES FOR FIRE INSPECTIONS
SECTION 107.1 FEES FOR FIRE INSPECTION.
Section 107.1 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

107.1 Fees for Fire Inspections. The fire code official shall be authorized to charge a fee
for fire inspections of existing buildings and properties within the North Central Fire
Protection District. Fees for such services shall be in accordance with fire department

policy.

Page 10 of 37



SECTION 109 MAINTENANCE
SECTION 109.6 OVERCROWDING.
Section 109.6 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

109.6 Overcrowding. Overcrowding or admittance of any person beyond the approved
capacity of a building or a portion thereof shall not be allowed. The fire code official or
designee, on finding any overcrowding conditions or obstructions in aisles, passageways
or other means of egress, or on finding any condition that constitutes a life safety hazard,
shall be authorized to cause the event to be stopped until such condition or obstruction is
corrected.

SECTION 110.2 SERVICE UTILITIES
SECTION 110.2 AUTHORITY TO REQUIRE CONNECTION TO SERVICE UTILITIES.
Section 110.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

110.2 Authority to require connection to service utilities. The fire code official shall
have the authority to require connection of utility services to the building, structure or
system to a recognized service utility provider in order to ensure the safety of occupants
and the preservation of the structure. Utility services may include, but are not limited to,
water service, electrical service, gas service, or any other utility service. The fire code
official may refuse to issue any permits until the owner of the building, structure or system
provides proof of connection to the utility service.

SECTION 111 BOARD OF APPEALS
SECTION 111.2 LIMITATIONS ON AUTHORITY.
Section 111.2 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

111.2 Limitations on Authority. An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that
the intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly
interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully apply, or an equivalent method of
protection or safety is proposed. The board shall not have authority to waive requirements
of this code. An economic condition shall not be considered as a basis for an appeal of the
provisions of this Code.

Page 11 of 37



SECTION 112 VIOLATIONS
SECTION 112.3.1 SERVICE.
Section 112.3.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

112.3.1 Service. A notice of violation issued pursuant to this code shall be served upon
the owner, operator, occupant, or other person responsible for the condition of violation
either by personal service, mail, or by delivering the same to, and leaving it with, some
person of responsibility upon the premises. For unattended or abandoned properties, a
copy of such notice shall be sent by first class mail to the last known address of the owner,
occupant, or both. The fire code official is authorized to issue an administrative citation for
abatement of violations of this code in accordance with fire department policy

SECTION 112.4 VIOLATION PENALTIES.
Section 112.4 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

112.4 Violation Penalties. Persons who shall violate any provisions of said California Fire
Code or these amendments, or fail to comply therewith, or who shall violate or fail to comply
with any order made thereunder, or who shall build in violation of any detailed statement
of specifications or plans submitted and approved thereunder or any certificate or permit
issued thereunder, and from which no appeal has been taken, or who shall fail to comply
with such an order as affirmed or modified by the Board of Directors or by a court of
competent jurisdiction within the time fixed therein, shall severally for each and every such
violation and noncompliance, respectively, be guilty of a misdemeanor. Upon failure to
comply with a written notice of violation, the fire code official may request that the Fresno
County District Attorney institute legal action. The imposition of a penalty for any violation
shall not excuse the violation or permit it to continue, and all such persons shall be required
to correct or remedy such violations or defects within a reasonable time as determined by
the fire code official. For each day or portion of a day prohibited conditions are maintained
shall constitute a separate offense. The application of the penalty set forth in this
subsection of this section shall not be held to prevent the district from abating the
conditions. The Fire Chief or designee is authorized to issue administrative citations in
accordance with written procedures and Master Fee Schedule charges approved by the
Board.

112.4.1 Abatement of Violation. In addition to the imposition of the penalties herein
described, the fire code official is authorized to institute appropriate action to prevent
unlawful construction or to restrain, correct or abate a violation; or to prevent illegal
occupancy of a structure or premises; or to stop an illegal act, conduct of business or
occupancy of a structure on or about any premises. Such action is subject to the cost
recovery provisions of Section 115.2.

Page 12 of 37



SECTION 113 STOP WORK ORDER
SECTION 113.4 FAILURE TO COMPLY.
Section 113.4 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:;

113.4 Failure to Comply. Any persons who shall continue any work after having been
served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to
remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to an administrative citation or
other judicial or administrative action in accordance with Section 115.2.

SECTION 114 UNSAFE STRUCTURES OR EQUIPMENT
SECTION 114.1 General.
Section 114.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

114.1 General. If during the inspection of a premises, a structure, or any building system,
in whole or in part, constitutes a clear and inimical threat to human life, safety or health,
the fire code official shall issue such notice or orders to remove or remedy the conditions
as shall be deemed necessary in accordance with this section, and shall refer the building
to the building official for any repairs, alterations, remodeling, removing or demolition

required.
SECTION 114.1.1 Unsafe Conditions.

Section 114.1.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

114.1.1 Unsafe Conditions. Structures or existing equipment that are or hereafter become
unsafe, insanitary or deficient because of inadequate means of egress, inadequate light
and ventilation, or that constitute a fire hazard, are otherwise dangerous to human life or
the public welfare, or involve illegal or improper occupancy or inadequate maintenance,
shall be deemed an unsafe condition. Unsafe structures shall be taken down and removed
or made safe, as the fire code official deems necessary and as provided for in this section.
A vacant structure that is not secured against unauthorized entry shall be deemed unsafe.

SECTION 114.1.2 Structural Hazards.
Section 114.1.2 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:
114.1.2 Structural Hazards. Where an apparent structural hazard is caused by the faulty
installation, operation or malfunction of any of the items or devices governed by this code,

the fire code official shall immediately notify the building code official in accordance with
Section 114.1.

Page 13 of 37



SECTION 115.2 COST RECOVERY.
Section 115.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

115.2 Cost Recovery. The fire code official or designee is authorized to-recover any direct
or indirect costs for fire prevention, fire suppression, hazardous material incident response,
and protection of the public from fire and life safety hazards.

115.3 Fire Prevention Cost Recovery. Any person or firm who fails to, or refuses to,
correct, within the time allotted for correction, any fire hazard prohibited by code, regulation
or law, for which a public agency has issued a notice of violation or correction respecting
the hazard, or failure to comply with a written notice of violation is liable for the fire
prevention costs, and any other costs, incurred in furtherance of the abatement of the fire
hazard, and those costs shall be a charge against that person.

115.4 Fire Suppression Cost Recovery. Any person or firm who causes a fire, sets a
fire, allows a fire to be set, or allows a fire kindled or attended by him or her to escape onto
any public or private property, is liable for the fire suppression costs, rescue or emergency
medical services costs, and any other costs incurred as a result of fighting the fire.

115.5 Hazardous Materials Release Cost Recovery. Any person or firm who releases a
hazardous material, allows a hazardous material to be released, causes, or allows a
hazardous material attended by him or her to escape onto any public or private property,
is liable for the hazardous material incident response, rescue or emergency medical
services costs, and any other costs incurred as a result of responding to the hazardous
material release.

115.6 Protection of the Public Cost Recovery. Any person or firm who creates a fire or
life safety hazard to the public, allows a fire or life safety hazard to the public, causes, or
allows a fire or life safety hazard to the public to escape onto any public or private property,
is liable for the fire or life safety hazard incident response, rescue or emergency medical
services costs, and any other costs incurred as a result of responding to the fire or life
safety hazard to the public.

115.7 Action and Administration. Cost recovery actions and administration pursuant to
this section shall be as set forth in the Master Fee Schedule and fire department policy,
and shall constitute a debt of such person, and is collectable by the North Central Fire
Protection District in the same manner as in the case of an obligation under a contract,
express or implied.

115.8 Other Laws. The provisions of this section shall not be deemed to nullify or prevent
the application, either cumulatively, concurrently, or separately, of the provisions of the
California Health and Safety Code or any other law related to liability

Page 14 of 37



DEFINITIONS
SECTION 202 GENERAL DEFINITIONS
The following definitions are added to Section 202 of the California Fire Code to read:

FIRE DEPARTMENT BYPASS KEY. An approved key used by authorized emergency
services personnel to bypass secured access locations.

FIRE MARSHAL. A chief fire officer of the fire department or a duly authorized
representative, who is charged with either the prevention or investigation of fires.

RECYLCING AND INDUSTRIAL WASTE. Any material which has been recycled,
including post-consumer or industrial waste, wood by-products or other similar products.

RECYLCING AND INDUSTRIAL WASTE HANDLING FACILITY. Any site that stores,
manufactures, processes or handles wood by-products, recycled materials, including post-
consumer waste, industrial waste, or other similar materials.

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
SECTION 304 COMBUSTIBLE WASTE MATERIAL
SECTION 304.4 RECYCLING AND INDUSTRIAL WASTE HANDLING FACILITIES.
Section 304.4 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

304.4 Recycling and Industrial Waste Handling Facilities. See Chapter 28 of the CFC
and this ordinance for specific requirements related to recycling and industrial waste
handling facilities. Recycling and industrial waste handling facilities shall also be in
accordance with applicable fire department policies.

SECTION 304.5 DUMPING OF COMBUSTIBLE WASTE MATERIAL.
Section 304.5 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

304.5 Dumping of Combustible Waste Material. No owner or occupant of any Lot, site
or premises shall maintain thereon any rubbish or waste material likely to become easily
ignited, and, provided further, no person shall place, deposit, or leave any piles of dirt,
metallic cans, combustible waste, or rubbish on any property not owned or controlled by
such person or persons.

Page 15 of 37



SECTION 304.6 REMOVAL OF DEBRIS.
Section 304.6 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

304.6 Removal of Debris. Any person having in their possession or under their control,
upon any premises, any kind of materials, which have been rendered useless or un-
merchandisable by reasons of any fire on the premises, or any other debris resulting from
such fire, must commence to remove the same from the premises within twenty-four (24)
hours after notice to do so from the fire department, and must thereupon proceed with and
diligently carry on the work of such removal until the same has been completed.

SECTION 307 OPEN BURNING, RECREATIONAL FIRES AND PORTABLE
OUTDOOR FIREPLACES

SECTION 307.1.1 PROHIBITED OPEN BURNING.
Section 307.1.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

307.1.1 Prohibited Open Burning. Notwithstanding other provision in Section 307, open
burning is prohibited as follows:

1. Open burning that is offensive or objectionable because of smoke emissions or
when atmospheric conditions or local circumstances make such fires hazardous shall be
prohibited.

2. Open burning in violation of the rules or regulations promulgated by the San Joaquin
Valley Air Pollution Control District.

3. The fire code official is authorized to order, or effect the immediate extinguishment,
of any open burning when in the opinion of the fire code official is reasonably necessary
for safety and protection of life and health, and may issue administrative citations and seek
to recover costs in accordance with Sections 115.2 (Cost Recovery) of this Code.

SECTION 312 VEHICLE IMPACT PROTECTION
SECTION 312.1 GENERAL.
Section 312.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

312.1 General. Vehicle impact protection required by this Code shall be provided by posts
that comply with Section 312.2 of the CFC or by other approved physical barriers that
comply with 312.3 of the CFC. Exception: Fire hydrants and fire sprinkler risers may be
protected in accordance with fire district policies (Fire hydrant installation with protector
posts) as incorporated here by reference.

Page 16 of 37



SECTION 315.4.3. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR OUTSIDE STORAGE.
Section 315.4.3 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

315.4.3. Additional Requirements for Outside Storage. Outside storage of tires shall
be in accordance with Chapter 34 of the CFC. Outside storage of recycled materials,
industrial waste, idle pallets, plastic or wooden finished products, baled material, or other
similar products shall be in accordance with Chapter 28 of the CFC and fire district policy.
Outdoor storage at sites that store, manufacture, process or handle wood by-products,
recycled materials, industrial waste, and other similar materials shall be in accordance with
Chapter 28 of the CFC. An approved water supply, including on site storage, for firefighting
purposes shall be provided in accordance with Section 507 of the CFC.

FIRE SERVICE FEATURES
SECTION 503 FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS
SECTION 503.5 REQUIRED GATES OR BARRICADES.
Section 503.5 of the California Fire Code amended to read:

503.5 Required Gates or Barricades. The fire code official is authorized to require the
installation and maintenance of gates or other approved barricades across fire apparatus
access roads, trails or other access ways, not including public streets, alleys or highways.
Electric gate operators, where provided, shall be listed in accordance with UL 325. Gates
intended for automatic operation shall be designed, constructed and installed to comply
with the requirements of ASTM F 2200. Entrances to roads, trails or other access ways
which have been closed with gates and barriers shall not be obstructed by parked vehicles.
Any vehicle parking in violation of this section shall be subject to being towed away and
stored. The registered owner of any vehicle parked in violation of this section shall be
responsible for all expenses incurred in connection with the towing and storage of such
vehicle.

SECTION 506 LOCKED PREMISES ACCESS.
Section 506 of the California Fire Code is renamed and amended to read:

506.1 Where Required. Where access to, or within a structure or an area is restricted
because of secured openings, the fire code official is authorized to require key boxes to
be installed in approved locations. Installation requirements and key box contents shall be
in accordance with fire department policy.

Page 17 of 37



506.1.1 Locks. An approved lock or remote opening device shall be installed on gates or
similar barriers when required by the fire code official in accordance with fire department

policy.

506.1.1.1 Unauthorized Possession of Fire Department Bypass Key. It shall be
unlawful for any person other than those authorized by the fire code official to possess a
fire department bypass key.

506.1.1.2 Unauthorized Duplication of Fire Department Bypass Key. No person shall
duplicate a fire department bypass key unless approved by the fire code official.

506.1.1.3 Penalties. Any person who shall violate either section 506.1.1.1 or 506.1.1.2
shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. Prosecution of such violations shall be in accordance
with the California Penal Code.

506.2 Key Box Maintenance. The operator of the building or premises shall immediately
notify the fire code official and provide the new key when a lock is changed or re-keyed.
The key to such lock shall be secured in the key box.

SECTION 507 FIRE PROTECTION WATER SUPPLIES
SECTION 507.3 FIRE FLOW.
Section 507.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

507.3 Fire Flow. Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of buildings and facilities
shall be determined by an approved method or Appendix B. Fire flow requirements for
buildings or portions of buildings and facilities shall be in accordance with fire department
policy, approved by the North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors.

INTERIOR FINISH, DECORATIVE MATERIALS AND FURNISHINGS

SECTION 807 DECORATIVE MATERIALS AND ARTIFICIAL DECORATIVE
VEGETATION IN NEW AND EXISTING BUILDINGS

SECTION 807.5.1.3 WOOD USE IN GROUP A-3 PLACES OF RELIGIOUS WORSHIP.
Section 807.5.1.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

807.5.1.3 Wood use in Group A-3 Places of Religious Worship. In new and existing
places of religious worship, wood used for ornamental purposes, trusses, paneling or
chancel furnishing shall be allowed where such material meets the flame spread
requirements found in Table 803.3.

Page 18 of 37



FIRE PROTECTION AND LIFE SAFETY SYSTEMS
SECTION 901 GENERAL
SECTION 901.4.5 ADDITIONAL FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEM.

Section 901.4.5 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

901.4.5 Additional Fire Protection Systems. In any occupancies of a hazardous nature,
where special hazards exist in addition to the normal hazards of the occupancy, or where
the fire code official determines that access for fire apparatus is unduly difficult, the fire
code official shall have the authority to require additional fire protection systems,
equipment or a combination thereof. Such systems include, but shall not be limited to,
the following: automatic fire detection systems, fire alarm systems, automatic fire
extinguishing systems, standpipe systems, or portable or fixed extinguishers. Any
additional fire protection systems or equipment required under this section shall be
installed in accordance with this Code, the applicable referenced standards, fire district
policy and be considered a required system in accordance with Section 901.4.1.

SECTION 901.6.3.2 PROBLEMATIC SYSTEMS.
Section 901.6.3.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

901.6.3.2 Problematic Systems. In the event of multiple fire alarm, fire detection, or fire
sprinkler monitoring system activations, the fire code official is authorized to charge the
property owner for the direct and indirect costs of each emergency response. After
responding to two (2) false alarm at the same facility in any calendar year from July 1
through June 30™, the cost of each response will be billed at the base rate established in
the Master Fee Schedule or actual time spent on the response, whichever is greater.
Action and administration to recover these costs shall be in accordance with Section 115.2

SECTION 903 AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER SYSTEMS
SECTION 903.1 GENERAL.
Section 903.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to add the following sub-sections:

903.1.2 Determination of Building Area. For purposes of determining building area for
automatic fire sprinkler system requirements, the following criteria shall be used:

1. Fire walls, fire barriers, fire partitions, or horizontal fire assemblies as defined in this
Code shall not be considered to create separate buildings or fire areas for determining
automatic fire sprinkler requirements.

Page 19 of 37



Exceptions:

(a) Party walls located on a lot line between two buildings in accordance with California
Building Code, Section 706.

(b) Fire walls without openings installed in accordance with California Building Code,
Section 706 and with specific fire wall requirements in Section 903.2 of this Code based
on occupancy.

2. Determination of building area for combustible construction shall be measured to
the building perimeter roof drip line, including any architectural features, such as, but not
limited to, mansards, towers, porte cocheres, etc., with the exception of 44" maximum
depth roof eaves. For non-combustible construction, building area shall include all
perimeter roof areas exceeding 44" that are required by the currently adopted edition of
NFPA 13 to have fire sprinkler protection under the projection. The area of open shafts or
courts need not be included in calculating floor area. When multiple buildings are
considered as one building per California Building Code Section 705.3, the combined floor
areas shall be used to determine the automatic fire sprinkler requirements.

SECTION 903.3.1 STANDARDS.
Section 903.3.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

903.3.1 Standards. Sprinkler systems shall be designed in accordance with Sections
903.3.1.1, 903.3.1.2, and 903.3.1.3. Automatic fire sprinklers or fire sprinkler systems not
required by the California Fire or Building Codes may be of any type approved by the fire
code official.

903.3.1.1.3. Group R Mixed Occupancy Buildings. Mixed occupancy buildings
containing Group R occupancies shall be provided with automatic sprinkler systems in
accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 (NFPA 13). The R-2 or R-3 residential portion of a
mixed occupancy building shall be provided with fire sprinkler piping and control valves
arranged so that the automatic sprinkler system can remain in service independent of non-
residential occupancies.

Exceptions:

1. Mixed occupancy buildings where a vertical fire barrier with no openings is provided
in accordance with California Building Code, Section 707 separating the R occupancy from
other uses may have automatic fire sprinkler systems installed in the residential portion in
accordance with Sections 903.3.1.2 (NFPA 13R) or 903.3.1.3 (NFPA 13D) as applicable.
Separate control valves shall be installed as indicated above unless otherwise approved
by the fire code official.

Page 20 of 37



2. Group R-1 or R-2 occupancies with accessory occupancy groups that do not
require installation of fire sprinklers by Section 903.2.

903.3.1.1.4. Joint Live/Work Units Quarters. Where joint live/work residential dwelling
units are constructed in accordance with California Fire Code, Chapter 9, Section 903,
automatic sprinkler systems shall be designed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1
(NFPA 13).

SECTION 903.4.3. FLOOR CONTROL VALVES.
Section 903.4.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

903.4.3. Floor Control Valves. Approved supervised indicating control valves and water
flow switches shall be provided at the point of connection to the riser on each floor in
buildings with three or more levels or where the floor level of the highest story is located
more than 30 feet above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access. The building
fire alarm, dedicated function fire alarm system or remote annunciator panel shall be
provided at an approved location, readily accessible to the fire department and shall
indicate the floor of activation of these devices.

Exception: NFPA 13R and 13D systems.
SECTION 903.6. WHERE REQUIRED IN EXISTING BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES
Section 903.6 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

903.6 Where Required in Existing Buildings and Structures. An approved automatic
fire extinguishing system shall be provided in existing buildings and structures, including
R3 occupancies, in those circumstances described in this Section and where required in
Chapter 1 1. Installation requirements shall be as set forth for new buildings by Sections
903.2 through 903.2.12 and, where applicable, the California Residential Code.

1. Building Additions. When additions exceed 25% of the existing building square
footage and the total proposed building area is 7,500 square feet or larger, an approved
automatic fire extinguishing system shall be installed throughout the building. The 25%
threshold shall be cumulative over the life of the building. Exception: Building additions of
entirely non-combustible construction and noncombustible uses such as covered
pedestrian walkways.

2. Change of Occupancy. In existing buildings 7,500 square feet or larger, when a
Change of Occupancy, in accordance with the California Building Code, is made and the
proposed new occupancy is more hazardous to life and safety than the existing occupancy,
an approved automatic fire extinguishing system shall be installed throughout the building.

Page 21 of 37



The determination of a more hazardous use or occupancy shall be made in accordance
with fire department policy. See policy 402.005.

Exceptions:

(a) Ifthe area in which the Change of Occupancy occurs is less than 25 percent of the
actual floor area of the existing building and the area of the new occupancy is 7,499 square
feet or less and an automatic fire extinguishing system is not required based on occupancy
by Section 903, an automatic fire sprinkler or extinguishing system is not required for any
portion of the building. The 25% limit is cumulative over the life of the building.

(b) If the area in which the Change of Occupancy occurs exceeds 25% but is less than
50% of the actual floor area of the existing building, only that portion of the building
changing occupancy is required to have an approved automatic fire extinguishing system
installed. An approved fire separation shall be required between portions of the building
with an automatic fire extinguishing system and those portions without.

(c) Ifindividual or cumulative Changes of Occupancy exceed 50% of the overall floor
area of the existing building, then the entire building shall have an approved automatic fire
extinguishing system installed throughout.

3. Fire Damage Repairs. An approved automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed
as a condition of a fire damage repair building permit as follows:

(@) When a fire occurs in any existing occupancy, including R-3 occupancies, and the
building permit repair costs exceed 50% of the current building valuation, an automatic fire
extinguishing system shall be installed throughout the building as required for a new
building in Section 903 or R313.

(b)  Fire damage repair costs and building valuation shall be determined by the Building
Official of Fresno County or City of Kerman based on the current ICC Building Valuation
Tables in use by the respective department at the time of the issuance of the fire damage
repair permit.

4. R-2 Condominium Conversions. Existing R-1 or R-2 buildings proposed for
conversion to condominiums shall have an approved automatic fire extinguishing system
installed throughout as a condition of approval.

5. A-l and A-2 Occupancies. In existing A-l and A-2 occupancies an approved
automatic fire extinguishing system shall be installed throughout the entire building as a
condition of any building permit where the permit cost is one-thousand ($1,000) or more.
Exception: Building permits issued exclusively for mechanical systems, plumbing systems,
electrical systems and re-roofing only.

Page 22 of 37



SECTION 912 FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTIONS
SECTION 912.2.3 ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION.
Section 912.2.3 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

912.2.3 Address Identification. For new and existing buildings, the fire code official is
authorized to require approved address or building area identification signage as needed
to readily determine the building or area of a building protected by fire department
connections.

MEANS OF EGRESS
SECTION 1025 LUMINOUS EGRESS PATH MARKINGS
SECTION 1025.1. GENERAL.
Section 1025.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

1025.1 General. Approved luminous egress path markings delineating the exit path shall
be provided in all new buildings three or more stories above grade or below grade in
accordance with Sections 1025.1 through 1025.5.

1. Luminous egress path markings shall not be required on the level of exit discharge
in lobbies that serve as part of the exit path in accordance with Section 1028.1.

2. Luminous egress path markings shall not be required in open parking garages that
serve as part of the exit path in accordance with Section 1028.1.

3. R-3 occupancies.

1025.1.1. Maintenance. Luminous egress path markings required in this section shall be
maintained in accordance with Sections 1025.1 through 1025.5 and fire department policy

as applicable.
CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING BUILDINGS
SECTION 1104.7.1. DOOR SWING.
Section 1104.7.1 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

1104.7.1. Door Swing. When, in the opinion of the fire code official, it is essential for
public safety in any existing building or occupancy, because of the number of persons
served, or the nature of the operation, an owner, agent or lessee shall install doors that
swing in the direction of egress travel, as required and approved when such places are
open to the public, or when such operation is being conducted.

Page 23 of 37



SECTION 1104.7.2. DOOR HARDWARE.
Section 1104.7.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

1104.7.2. Door Hardware. When, in the opinion of the fire code official, it is essential for
public safety in any existing building or occupancy, because of the number of persons
served, or the nature of the operation, an owner, agent or lessee shall provide and maintain
panic or fire exit hardware, as required and approved when such places are open to the
public, or when such operation is being conducted.

MOTOR FUEL-DISPENSING FACILITIES AND REPAIR GARAGES

SECTION 2306.2.3. ABOVE-GROUND TANKS LOCATED OUTSIDE OF
BUILDINGS, ABOVE GRADE.

Section 2306.2.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read.

1. Above-ground tanks used for outside above grade storage of Class | and Il liquids shall
be listed and labeled as protected above-ground tanks in accordance with Chapter 57.
Such tanks shall be located in accordance with Table 2306.2.3.

2. Above-ground tanks used for above grade storage of Class IlI-A liquids are allowed to
be protected above-ground tanks, or when approved by the fire code official, other
above-ground tanks that comply with Chapter 57. Tank locations shall be in accordance
with Table 2306.2.3.

3. Tanks containing fuels shall not exceed 12,000 gallons (45 420 L) in individual capacity
or 48,000 gallons (181 680 L) in aggregate capacity. Installations with the maximum
allowable aggregate capacity shall be separated from other such installations by not
less than 100 feet (30 480 mm).

4. Tanks located at tank farms, construction projects, or rural areas shall comply with
Section 5706.2 (et. al.)

FLAMMABLE FINISHES
SECTION 2401 GENERAL

SECTION 2401.1.2 LOCATION.
Section 2401.1.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

2401.1.2 Location. Locations or areas used for any of the operations noted in Section
2401.1 shall be located in accordance with the respective regulating agencies or
departments and fire district policy.

Page 24 of 37



SECTION 2810 RECYCLING AND WASTE HANDLING FACILITIES
SECTION 2810.1 SCOPE.
Section 2810.1 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

2810.1 Scope. The storage, manufacturing, processing or handling of wood byproducts,
recycled materials, industrial waste, and other similar materials not otherwise regulated by
this code shall be in accordance with this section and fire department policy. The title of
this Section shall be "RECYCLING AND WASTE HANDLING FACILITIES."

SECTION 2810.2. STORAGE SITE
Section 2810.2 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

2810.2 Storage Site. Storage, manufacturing, processing or handling sites shall be level
and on solid ground, elevated soil lifts or other all-weather surface. Sites shall be
thoroughly cleaned before transferring regulated products to the site.

SECTION 2810.5 SECURITY
Section 2810.5 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

2810.5 Security. Site pile areas shall be surrounded with an approved fence. Fences
shall be not less than 6 feet (1829 mm) in height.

SECTION 2810.6. PILE SEPARATION
Section 2810.6 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

2810.6 Pile Separation. Piles shall be separated from adjacent piles or other
exposures (including but not limited to, property lines, other storage, and buildings) by
means of fire district access roads.

SECTION 2810.7. CLEARANCE TO IMPORTANT BUILDINGS

Section 2810.7 of the California Fire Code is amended to read.

2810.7 Clearance to Important Buildings. Stacks of pallets shall not be stored within
0.75 times the stack height of any important building on site or shall comply with Section
2810.11.

SECTION 2810.9 PILE FIRE PROTECTION WATER SUPPLY
Section 2810.9 of the California Fire Code is added to read:

2810.9 Pile Fire Protection Water Supply. An approved water supply, including on site
storage, for firefighting purposes shall be provided in accordance with Section 507.

Page 25 of 37



SECTION 2810.10 FIRE EXTINGUISHERS
Section 2810.10 of the California Fire Code is added to read.

2810.10 Fire extinguishers. Portable fire extinguishers complying with Section 906
and with a minimum rating of 4-A60-B:C shall be provided on all vehicles and equipment
operating on piles and at all processing equipment.

SECTION 2810.12. SIZE OF PILES.
Section 2810.12 of the California Fire Code is added to read.

2810.12. Size of Piles. Piles shall not exceed 20 feet (6.1 m) in height, 50 feet (15.2 m)
in width and 250 feet (76.2 m) in length. Piles shall be separated from adjacent piles or
other exposures (including, but not limited to, property lines, other storage, and buildings)
by means of fire district access roadways. A 120 foot (36.6 m) by 90 foot (27.5 m) area
shall be maintained available for use by the fire district for interim storage of pile
breakdown material during fire suppression activities.

Exception: The fire code official is authorized to allow the pile size to be increased where
a fire protection plan has been approved and additional fire protection is provided in
accordance with Chapter 9. The increase shall be based on the capabilities of the system
installed and the features of the system.

The fire protection plan shall include, but is not limited to, the following:

1. Storage yard areas and materials-handling equipment selection, design and
arrangement shall be based upon sound fire prevention and protection principles.

2. Factors that lead to spontaneous heating shall be identified in the plan, and control of
the various factors shall be identified and implemented, including provisions for
monitoring the internal condition of the pile.

3. The plan shall include means for early fire detection and reporting to the public fire
district; and facilities needed by the fire district for fire extinguishment including a water
supply, on site water storage and fire hydrants.

4. Fire apparatus access roads around the piles and access roads to the top of the piles

shall be established, identified and maintained.

Regular yard inspections by trained personnel shall be included as part of an effective fire
prevention maintenance program.

Additional fire protection called for in the plan shall be provided and shall be installed in
accordance with this code.

Page 26 of 37



SECTION 2810.13 EXTERIOR STORAGE OF RECYCLED MATERIALS, INDUSTRIAL
WASTE, AND IDLE PALLETS.

2810.13 Exterior Storage of Recycled Materials, Industrial Waste and Idle Pallets. For
exterior storage of recycled material, industrial waste and idle pallets, see Section 315.4.3
and fire district policy.

EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS
SECTION 5602 FIREWORKS ORDINANCE.
Section 5602 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

5602.1 Fireworks Ordinance. This Section shall be known and cited as the "Fireworks
Ordinance." When used, "this Section" means the Fireworks Ordinance.

5602.1.1 Definitions. The following terms are defined in Charter 2.
5602.2 Findings and Intent.

(a) This Section governs the imposition, enforcement, collection and administrative
review of all administrative fines related to: the possession, use, storage, sale and/or
display of those fireworks classified as dangerous fireworks in California Health and Safety
Code, Section 12505 et seq. or the possession, use, storage, sale and/or display of Safe
and Sane fireworks on or at dates, times, and/or locations other than those permitted by
this Section. The administrative fines are imposed under authority of Government Code,
Section 53069.4; Health and Safety Code, Section 12557; and, the police power of the
North Central Fire Protection District.

(b) The issuance of an administrative citation to any person or property owner
constitutes but one remedy of the District to redress violations of this Section. By adopting
this Section, the District does not intend to limit its authority to employ any other remedy,
civil or criminal, to redress any violation of this Section which the District may otherwise
pursue.

(¢) The imposition of administrative fines under this Section shall be limited to persons
who possess, use, sell and/or display, or the seizure of 25 pounds or less of dangerous
fireworks or persons who possess, use, sell and/or display Safe and Sane fireworks on or
at the dates, times, and/ or locations other than those permitted by this Section.

(d) Administrative fines collected pursuant to this Section shall not be subject to Health
and Safety Code, Section 12706. The administrative fines collected shall be allocated in
compliance with Health and Safety Code, Section 12557, which requires the District to

Page 27 of 37



provide cost reimbursement to the California State Fire Marshal for reimbursement of
costs, including, but not limited to transportation, and disposal. Regulations are to be
adopted by the California State Fire Marshal setting forth this allocation. Unless and until
such regulations have been adopted by the State of California, the District shall hold in
trust a $250.00 fee in addition to any fine collected to cover the reimbursement to the
California State Fire Marshal for the cost of transportation and disposal of the dangerous
fireworks. This fee is non-refundable.

(e) Due to the serious threat of fire or injury posed by the use of dangerous fireworks
or Safe and Sane fireworks on or at dates, times, and/or locations other than those
permitted by this Section, this Section imposes strict civil liability upon the owners of
commercial or residential real property for all violations of this Section existing on that
property. Each contiguous use, display, and/or possession shall constitute a separate
violation and shall be subject to a separate administrative fine.

(f)  The fire code official or designee may seek cost recovery for any costs imposed on
the District or Fire Department due to negligence, an intentional wrongful act, an
unintentional wrongful act, carelessness, or malice as set forth in Section 115.2 of this
Code, and the Master Fee Schedule.

(g) This section shall not apply to the public display of fireworks in accordance with
Section 5608.

(h)  This section shall not apply to the storage and handling of Safe and Sane fireworks
in accordance with the California Building Code for Class 1.4G fireworks.

5602.3 Definitions

(a) "Dangerous fireworks" shall include any items or materials listed as such in
California Health and Safety Code, Section 12505.

(b) “Eligible organizations” means an organization or corporation, which has met all of
the following criteria continuously for a minimum of one year preceding the filing of the
application for a permit to display for sale or sell Safe and Sane fireworks.

(i) The organization and/or corporation must be a duly organized non-profit and tax-
exempt charitable, religious, civic, patriotic, or community service organization or
corporation with a current and valid title 26 U.S.C Section 501 (c) tax exemption from the
Internal Revenue Service.

(i)  The organization must be headquartered within and clearly affiliated or identified
with the North Central Fire Protection District.

Page 28 of 37



(i)  The organization must be one which provides direct and regular community services
and benefits to the citizens of the North Central Fire Protection District.

(iv) The organization must hold its regularly scheduled meetings within the North Central
Fire Protection District.

(c) "Exempt fireworks" means any special item containing pyrotechnic compositions
which the California State Fire Marshal, with the advice of the State Fire Advisory Board,
has investigated and determined to be limited to industrial, commercial, and agricultural
use, or religious ceremonies when authorized by a permit granted by the authority having
jurisdiction.

(d) “Fireworks" means any device containing chemical elements and chemical
compounds capable of burning independently of the oxygen of the atmosphere and
producing audible, visual, mechanical, or thermal effects which are useful as pyrotechnic
devices or for entertainment. These items include, but are not limited to:

() Devices designated by the manufacturer as fireworks.

(i)  Torpedoes, skyrockets, roman candles, rockets, Daygo bombs, sparklers, party
poppers, paper caps, chasers, fountains, smoke sparks, aerial bombs, and fireworks kits.

(e) "Safe and Sane fireworks" means any fireworks which do not come within the
definition of "dangerous fireworks" or "exempt fireworks." All Safe and Sane fireworks shall
be labeled with the Safe and Sane fireworks seal as authorized by the California State Fire
Marshal.

5602.4 General Prohibition Against Possession, Sale, Use and/or Display of
Fireworks.

Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no person shall possess, sell, use, display,
explode or discharge any fireworks within the North Central Fire Protection District.

5602.5 Safe and Sane Fireworks: Exceptions.

(a) The sale and/or display of Safe and Sane Fireworks shall be permitted only during
that period beginning at noon on June 28 and ending at noon on July 6 of the same year.

(b) Safe and Sane fireworks shall not be sold to any person under the age of sixteen
(16).

() The use and discharge of Safe and Sane fireworks within the North Central Fire
Protection District is permitted 365 days a year, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00

Page 29 of 37



p.m., except for the period of June 28 to July 6 when use and discharge will be allowed
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 12:00 a.m.

5602.6 Safe and Sane Fireworks Permits. Permits Required:

(a) Itis unlawful for any person to sell Safe and Sane fireworks within the North Central
Fire Protection District without a permit issued by the fire code official or designee.

(b) The fire code official is authorized to promulgate administrative rules and
procedures necessary for the successful and effective implementation of this Section
including rules and procedures governing the submission of applications for permits to sell
Safe and Sane fireworks, inspections of fireworks stands, operation of fireworks stands,
and such regulations relating to the sale of Safe and Sane fireworks as may be necessary
for the protection of life and property.

(b)  The fire code official or designee shall be responsible for reviewing applications for
permits to sell Safe and Sane fireworks.

5602.7 Safe and Sane Fireworks. Applications:

(a) All organizations or corporations interested in obtaining a permit to sell Safe and
Sane fireworks shall submit an application to the fire department on forms provided by the
fire department. There is a non-refundable application fee established by ordinance of the
Board of Directors and set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. This application fee shall be
in addition to any fee or tax imposed by any other chapter or article of the North Central
Fire Protection District Fire Code.

(b)  The fire code official or designee shall designate the time period when applications
will be accepted.

(c)  No organization shall submit more than one application. Submittal of more than one
application shall be grounds for denial of all applications submitted by that organization.

(d) There shall be allowed a maximum of thirty-one (31) fireworks stands in the North
Central Fire Protection District. Stands which meet the requirement of this code will be
allowed to remain until they relinquish their position. Any of the non-profit organizations
which operated in accordance with previous District policy as of December 31, 2007, will
retain their position until they relinquish it.

(e) Ifthere are less than thirty-one (31) eligible stands, then a lottery shall take place at
a time and location determined by the fire code official or designee, with all eligible
organizations on the waiting list to fill empty positions.

Page 30 of 37



) Each new participant, as well as the previously permitted participants, shall submit
additional information as required by the fire department which shall be reviewed prior to
issuance of any permits to sell Safe and Sane fireworks for the upcoming fireworks season

5602.8 Safe and Sane Fireworks. Issuance of Permits:

(a) No permit to sell Safe and Sane fireworks shall be issued to any organization except
non-profit and tax-exempt organizations or corporations organized primarily for charitable,
religious, civic, patriotic, or community service as defined in Section 5602.3(b).

(b)  Upon notification that the organization has been selected by lottery to participate in
the upcoming fireworks season, each organization shall provide additional information as
required by the fire department including, but not limited to:

(1) A non-refundable fee established by ordinance of the North Central Fire Protection
District and set forth in the Master Fee Schedule. This fee shall be in addition to any fee
or tax imposed by any other chapter or article of the North Central Fire Protection District
ordinance adopting the 2022 California Fire Code.

(i)  An executed Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement as required by the
North Central Fire Protection District Attorney or designee.

(i)  Throughout the life of the permit, the applicant shall pay for and maintain in full force
and effect policies of insurance as required by the North Central Fire Protection District
Attorney or designee. The policies of insurance shall name the North Central Fire
Protection District, its officers, officials, agents, employees and authorized volunteers as
additional insured. The applicant shall submit proof of insurance in a manner authorized
by the North Central Fire Protection District Attorney or designee.

(iv)  Other information as may be required by the fire department or North Central Fire
Protection District, pursuant to administrative rules and procedures promulgated by the fire
code official pursuant to Section 5602.6(b).

(c) Permits shall be issued upon review of all information submitted by the organization
and inspection and approval of the organization's temporary fireworks stand.

5602.9 Safe and Sane Fireworks. Operator Safety Seminar:

Each year, one or more representatives from each organization that is granted a permit to
sell or display fireworks shall attend a stand operator safety seminar conducted by the
North Central Fire Protection District or the fireworks industry. Failure of an organization
to have a responsible individual attend the seminar shall result in the revocation of the
permit.

Page 31 of 37



5602.10 Revocation of Permits. The fire code official or designee may revoke the permit
of any organization that violates the provisions of this Section or any rules or regulations
promulgated pursuant to Section 5602.6(b). Notice of revocation shall be made in writing
by the fire department to the organization. The fire code official or his designee may
reinstate a permit upon proof that the permit holder is in compliance with all provisions and
rules pertaining to this Section.

5602.1.1 Administrative Fines. In addition to any other remedy available at law, any
person or entity who possesses, uses, stores, sells and/or displays dangerous fireworks
or any person or entity who possesses, uses, sells and/or displays Safe and Sane
fireworks on or at dates, times, or locations other than those permitted by this Section are
subject to an administrative fine of not less than one-thousand dollars ($1,000.00).

5602.12 Seizure of Fireworks. The fire code official or designee shall seize, take, remove
or cause to be removed, at the expense of the owner, all stocks of fireworks offered or
exposed for sale, stored or held in violation of this Section. Such seizure shall be subject
to cost recovery in accordance with Section 115.2.

5602.13 Appeals.

(a) Any administrative citation issued for failure to comply with the provisions of this
Section can be appealed to the North Central Fire Protection District Board of Directors by
submitting a written request for an appeal hearing within 10 days from the date of the
citation. Appeals shall be mailed to "Attention: Fire Chief, North Central Fire Protection
District 15850 W. Kearney Blvd., Kerman, California 93630". If no appeal is filed within the
time prescribed, the action of the fire code official or designee shall be final.

(b) The denial of an application for a fireworks permit shall be appealed pursuant to
5602.13(a). If no appeal is filed within the time prescribed, the action of the fire code official
or designee shall be final.

(c) A minor and the parent(s) or guardian(s) having custody and control of said minor,
are jointly and severally liable to the North Central Fire Protection District for any
administrative citation and/or penalty issued for failure to comply with the provisions of this
Section.

(d) The administrative citation penalty may become a special assessment or a lien
against the property of any person who is issued a citation for violation of the provisions of
this Section. This shall include the property of a minor who is issued a citation and/or the
property of the parent(s) or guardian(s) having custody and control of the minor or private
property owner that allows the illegal use or storage on their property.

Page 32 of 37



SECTION 5604 PROHIBITION OF EXPLOSIVES.
Section 5604.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

5604.1 Prohibition of Explosives. The possession, storage, use and handling of
explosives are prohibited within the limits established by law.

Exception: Storage and sale of small arms ammunition, small arms primers, smokeless
powder and black sporting powder in accordance with Title 19, Chapter 10, Article 12 of
the California Code of Regulations and Section 307 of the California Building Code.

FLAMMABLE AND COMBUSTIBLE LIQUIDS
SECTION 5704 STORAGE
SECTION 5704.3.5.1 BASEMENT STORAGE.
Section 5704.3.5.1 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

5704.3.5.1 Basement Storage. Class | liquids shall not be stored in basements. Class I
and lllA liquids shall be allowed to be stored in basements, provided that automatic fire
suppression and other fire protection are provided in accordance with Chapter 9.

SECTION 5706.2.4. PERMANENT AND TEMPORARY TANKS
Section 5706.2.4 of the California Fire Code is amended to read.

5706.2.4 Permanent and Temporary Tanks. The aggregate capacity of permanent and
temporary above-ground tanks containing Class | and |l liquids shall not exceed
1,100gallons (4163.9L). Tanks shall be constructed in accordance with Section 5704.2
(et. al.). Exception: Protected above-ground tanks meeting the requirements of Section

2306.2.3.
SECTION 5706.2.4.4 LOCATIONS WHERE ABOVE-GROUND TANKS ARE
PROHIBITED.
Section 5706.2.4.4 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

5706.2.4.4 Locations Where Above-Ground Tanks Are Prohibited. The storage of
Class I and Il liquids in above-ground tanks is prohibited within the limits established by
law as the limits of districts in which such storage is prohibited North Central Fire
Protection District.

Page 33 of 37



APPENDIX B
FIRE-FLOW REQUIREMENTS FOR BUILDINGS
SECTION B103.4 ADDITIONAL MODIFICATIONS.
Section B103.4 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

B103.4 Additional Modifications. The fire chief is authorized to make additional
modifications to fire-flow requirements for any building, or group of buildings, provided the
modifications meet the intent of this code and are supported by the water system capability
of the water purveyor. This section does not permit, and shall not be used for, waiving
provisions of this code for required fire flow.

APPENDIX C
FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTION
SECTION C103.4 ADDITIONAL MODIFICATIONS.
Section C103.4 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

C103.4 Additional Modifications. The Fire Chief is authorized to make additional
modifications to the number of fire hydrants, fire hydrant spacing and fire hydrant location
requirements, provided the modifications meet the intent of this code and are supported
by the water distribution system. This section does not permit, and shall not be used for,
waiving provisions of this code related to the number of fire hydrants, or fire hydrant
spacing and location requirements.

SECTION 8-103 HISTORIC BUILDINGS.
Section 8-103.3 of the California Historical Building Code (CHBC) is amended to read:

8-103.3 Liability. Prevailing law regarding immunity of building and fire officials is
unaffected by the use and enforcement of the CHBC.

8-104.4 Local Agency Fees. The North Central Fire Protection District and any local
agencies, when involved in the appeal, may also charge affected persons reasonable fees
not to exceed the cost of obtaining reviews and appeals from the Board.

8-302.1 Existing use. The specific use or character of occupancy of a qualified historical
building or property, or portion thereof, may be permitted to continue in use regardless of
any period of time in which it may have remained unoccupied or in other uses, provided
such building or property otherwise conforms to all applicable requirements of the CHBC.

Page 34 of 37



8-302.2 Change in occupancy. The use or character of the occupancy of a qualified
historical building or property may be changed from or returned to its historical use or
character, provided the qualified historical building or property conforms to the
requirements applicable to the new use or character of occupancy as set forth in the CHBC
and North Central Fire Protection District Fire Code Sections 903.1 through 903.3.5.1.2.
Such change in occupancy shall not mandate conformance with new construction
requirements as set forth in regular code.

LIQUIFIED PETROLEUM GASES
SECTION 6101 GENERAL
SECTION 6101.3 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.
Section 6101.3 of the California Fire Code is amended to read:

6101.3 Construction Documents. Where a single container or aggregate of containers
is more than 500 gallons in water capacity, the installer shall submit construction
documents for such installation.

Page 35 of 37



If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is, for any reason,
held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions of this ordinance. The North Central Fire Protection District hereby declares that
it would have passed this ordinance, and each section, subsection, clause or phrase
thereof, regardless if any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses and
phrases be declared unconstitutional.

This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption by the North Central Fire
Protection Board of Directors and ratification by the City of Kerman City Council and the
County of Fresno Board of Supervisors.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the North
Central Fire Protection District on this 26th day of January, 2023, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTION:
APPROVED:
Board Chairperson
ATTEST:

Board Secretary

Page 36 of 37



CERTIFICATE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
COUNTY OF FRESNO ) SS.

CITY OF KERMAN )

I, , Board Secretary of the North Central Fire Protection District, do certify
that the foregoing Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the North Central Fire Protection
District was duly passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors on

January 26, 2023.
DATED: January 26, 2023

Board Secretary

Page 37 of 37



December 2022

- 120 ometme

Average Response Time Fires
L TOTAL FIRE LOSS

$986,900.00

18

16
16
14 12
12 .
10 \
3
2

NCR54 NCR55 NCR56 NCR57 NCR58 NCR59 NCKer NCBio

=]

oON A~

tiGoal Time mMax Time Average FIRES BY TYPE
Overlapping call % by Station (Q2) gl
0% wmst.54 R

1 1 5 1 5 = St. 55 Outside
It 14 ST. 56 kg
12 | St. 54 S

8 #St. 56 :

6 4 st. 57 : :2‘:

4 mst. 58 ® Madera

(2) 0o l m St. 59

St. 54 St 55 St.56 St 57 St.58 St 59



NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian « Michael Foglio
Michael Golden « Rusty Nonini + Amanda Souza

Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

Fire Headquarters

16850 W. Kearney Boulevard
Kerman, California 93630-9335

(559) 878-4550 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief
DATE: January 26, 2023
SUBJECT: 2022 Strike Team Reimbursements

Below is a list of the Strike Team incidents the District provided resources to during the
fire season throughout the State. Below is a chart showing the total reimbursable items
submitted as well as a column showing the reimbursements received to date.

District Rig Admin Total to be Total

Incident Rig OT Reimb. | Reimb. Reimb. Reimb. Reimbursed
Mosquito | OES-5603| $ 33,390.72| $ -l $ 3,339.07] $§ 36,720.79] $ -
Mountain |OES-5603| $ 6,383.52| $ -1 $ 63835 $ 702187 $ -
Mill OES-5603] $ 8,163.54] $ 1 $ 81635 $ 8,979.89] $ 8,979.89
McKinney | OES-5603| $ 31,058.28] $ 254.00] $ 3,131.23| $ 34,44351| $ -
Oak OES-5603| $ 31,487.94] $ -l $ 3,148.79] $ 34,636.73] $ 34,636.73
Washburn| OES-5603| $ 17,800.20| $ -| $ 1,780.02] $ 19,580.22| $ -
Totals| $128,284.20] $ 254.00] $12,853.81] $ 141,392.01| $ 43,616.62

The District has received reimbursement from the State for two of the incidents we
provided resources. The reimbursements due for all six incidents totals $141,392.01 with
$97,775.39 still to be reimbursed.

All invoices have been received from Cal OES and were verified by District staff and
submitted for reimbursement. The District is anticipating receipt of the remaining
reimbursements prior to fiscal year end.

Recommended Action: Information only.

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



W o NORTH CENTRAL FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
@ Board of Directors: Ken Abrahamian * Michael Foglio

- Michael Golden ¢ Rusty Nonini * Amanda Souza
Fire Chief: Timothy V. Henry, CFO, EFO

@ Fire Headquarters
15850 W. Kearney Boulevard

s Kerman, California 93630-9335
(559) 878-4550 « FAX (559) 846-3788
www.northcentralfire.org

MEMORANDUM
TO: North Central Board of Directors
FROM: Timothy Henry, Fire Chief

DATE: January 26, 2023

SUBJECT: Grant Status Update

Staff recently received non-award notifications from FEMA regarding applications
submitted for the following programs:

e 2021 SAFER Grant - Hiring in the amount of $2,470,986 for 9 Firefighters

e 2021 Fire Prevention & Safety Grant in the amount of $168,027 for a Fire Safety
Trailer and Digital Fire Extinguishing Training System

e 2021 Assistance to Firefighters Grant in the amount of $915,390 for Type |
Pumper/Engine

Applications for these programs for the 2022 award year will be prepared as the grant
application submission periods become available. Staff has also recently participated in
multiple FEMA workshops that provided valuable information on how to make
improvements in the grant applications moving forward.

In addition to the above programs, staff is currently preparing a 2022 Office of Traffic
Safety Grant application in the amount of $156,890.70 for vehicle extrication equipment
due this month. This year, the North Central Fire District Foundation will also be
submitting for a Fire Prevention & Safety Grant to help supplement the fire prevention
efforts of the department.

Staff will provide a grant status update after all the applications are submitted reflecting
the amount, project requests and anticipated award notification timeframes.

Recommended Action: Information Only

“Our Mission: To integrate with our community by exceeding traditional service expectations”



